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DYNAMIC ONLINE SOLUTIONS, LLC, a 
limited liability company, 

HSC LABS, INC., a corporation, 

RED DUST STUDIOS, INC., a corporation, 

SEASIDE VENTURES TRUST, individually 
and as an officer and director ofthe corporate 
defendants, and 

JOHN DOE NO.1, in his capacity as trustee of 
Seaside Ventures Trust, 

Defendants. 

COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER EQUITABLE RELIEF 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), for its Complaint alleges: 

1. The FTC brings this action under Section l3(b) of the Federal Trade Commission 

Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.c. § 53(b), to obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive 

relief, rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, disgorgement 

of ill-gotten monies, the appointment of a receiver, and other equitable relief for Defendants' 

acts or practices in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b). 

3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.c. § 1391(b) and (c), and 15 U.S.c. 

§ 53(b). 

PLAINTIFF 

4. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government created by 

2 
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1 statute. 15 
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--------------------------------------, 

I fonnulated, directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or 
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I located at 8550 West Desert Inn Road, Suite 102-381, Las Vegas, Nevada 89117. This address 

2 is a mail box located close to the call center. Beginning in the summer of 20 1 0, however, 

3 Defendants instructed call center employees to inform consumers that Illustrious Perks is located 

4 at a specified address in Beaverton, Oregon and that Select Platinum Credit is located at a 

5 specified address in Rocky Mount, North Carolina. Both of these addresses are mail boxes. In 

6 addition, employees tell consumers that Kryptonite Credit is located at a specified address in 

7 Petaluma, California. This address is also just a mail box. 
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42. Many consumers call the numbers on the remotely created checks to ask why they 

have been charged and to seek refunds for those charges. Defendants tell call center employees 

they can expect that 90% of consumers calling will be seeking a cancellation, seeking a refund, 

or asking about the status of a promised refund. Posing as a consumer, an FTC investigator 

called a number on the Defendants' remotely created checks. A call center employee who 

identified himself as "James" noted that the call center handles "all the calls because a lot of 

people will get signed up and say they don't want it [the continuity program], so they'll call and 

they'll cancel it." 

43. Call center employees answering calls from consumers about each continuity 

program initially ask consumers for identifying information to access consumers' accounts in 

Defendants' database. Defendants instruct these employees not to tell consumers calling about a 

particular continuity program about other continuity programs that Defendants may have 

enrolled those consumers in unless the consumers raise the programs. 

44. Additionally, in situations where Defendants enrolled consumers in multiple 

continuity programs and those consumers ask about more than one program during a single 

phone call, Defendants have instructed call center employees to refuse to help consumers 

11 



              



       

           

           

            

           

          

              

    

             



            

         

           

             

                

              

      

          

                 

         

       

    

                

     

         

                

               

            

     

  

 

         

        

Case 2:11-cv-00461-JCM -RJJ   Document 1    Filed 03/28/11   Page 15 of 19

I "escalated" to a manager who will call those consumers. In numerous instances, those 

2 consumers receive no subsequent call from a call center manager. 
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54. During some periods of time, consumers calling these numbers are not connected 

to a representative. Instead, these consumers hear a voice message stating the consumers' phone 

numbers are being pp
(centers )Tj
0.0196- 52.188consumera who fromo 
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I continuity programs. 

2 67. Defendants' failure to disclose or disclose adequately the material information 

3 described in Paragraph 66 of this Complaint in light of the representation described in Paragraph 

4 65 of this Complaint constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of the 

5 FTC Act, 15 V.S.c. § 45(a). 

6 

7 DECEPTIVE REFUND PRACTICES 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

COURt IV 

68. In numerous instances, when consumers contact Defendants to seek cancellations 

and refunds, Defendants represent, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication that 

consumers are not entitled to a refund because they agreed: 

69. 

a. to enroll in Defendants' continuity programs; 

b. 

c. 

to pay charges associated with Defendants's continuity programs; and 

that they would be entitled to a refund for Defendants' continuity 

programs only if they asked for a refund during the trial period; 

In truth and in fact, in numerous instances in which Defendants make these 

17 representations, consumers did not agree: 

18 a. to enroll in Defendants' continuity programs; 

19 

20 

21 

22 70. 

b. 

c. 

to pay charges associated with Defendants' continuity programs; or 

that they would be entitled to a refund for Defendants' continuity 

programs only if they asked for a refund during the trial period; 

Therefore, Defendants' representations set forth in Paragraph 68 of this 

23 Complaint are false or misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of 

24 

25 16 
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I Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(a). 
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Count V 

71. In numerous instances, when consumers contact Defendants to seek refunds, 

Defendants represent, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication that they will provide 

refunds. 

72. In numerous of these instances, Defendants do not provide refunds. 

73. Therefore, Defendants' representations set forth in Paragraph 71 of this 

Complaint are false or misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of 

Section 5(a) ofthe FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

CONSUMER INJURY 

74. Consumers have suffered and will continue to A c t j 
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1 and the Court's own equitable powers, requests that the Court: 
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A. 

B. 

C. 

D. 

Award Plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as may be necessary to 

avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to preserve 

the possibility of effective final relief, including but not limited to, temporary and 

preliminary injunctions, an order freezing assets, immediate access, and the appointment 

of a receiver; 

Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTCc 5.088 0 w Td
(injunc11.3Td
(FTCc 5.6197 T-uo0.07u01.521 0 Td
( Td
(the )Tj
0fj
0.0218 Tc 4.effective )Tc 11.3 0 0  -1.89nr0.(future )27 0Tj
0.0169(future )8n84d5
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0.05 Tc 1Cou )Tj
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